ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
JO NT MEETI NG
SENATE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COVM TTEE
HOUSE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COVM TTEE
March 29, 2017
8:03 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT
SENATE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COW TTEE

Senat or Shel | ey Hughes, Chair
Senator Gary Stevens

Senator Cathy G esse

Senat or John Coghi | |

Senat or Tom Begi ch

HOUSE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COW TTEE
Representative Harriet Drunmond, Chair
Representative Justin Parish, Vice Chair
Representati ve Zach Fansl er
Representative |Ivy Spohnhol z
Representati ve Jennifer Johnston
Represent ati ve Chuck Kopp
Representative David Tal erico
Representative Lora Reinbold

MEMBERS ABSENT

SENATE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COWM TTEE
Al'l nmenbers present

HOUSE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COW TTEE
Representative Geran Tarr

COW TTEE CALENDAR

PRESENTATI ON:  ALASKA STATE SCHOOL BOARD

- HEARD

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES -1- March 29, 2017



PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
No previous action to record
W TNESS REGQ STER

JAMES FI ELDS, Chair

Al aska State Board of Education

d ennal | en, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented information on the State School
Boar d.

SUE HULL, First Vice Chair

Al aska State School Board

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented information on the State School
Boar d.

JOHN HARMON, Second Vice Chair

Al aska State School Board

Pal mer, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented information on the State School
Boar d.

BARBARA THOMPSON, Menber

Al aska State School Board

Dougl as, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented information on the State School
Boar d.

W LFRI ED ZI BELL, Youth Advi sor

Al aska State School Board

Noor vi k, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented information on the State School
Boar d.

CHARLES M CHAEL, Youth Advi sor - El ect

Al aska State School Board

Pal mer, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented information on the State School
Boar d.

REBECCA HI MSCHOOT, Menber

Al aska State School Board

Sitka, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented information on the State School
Boar d.

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES - 2- March 29, 2017



LT. COLONI AL JASON TOOLE, MIlitary Advisor

Joi nt Base El nendor f

Al aska State School Board

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented information on the State School
Boar d.

DR. KEI TH HAM LTON, Menber

Al aska State School Board

Pr esi dent

Al aska Christian Coll ege

Member

Al aska Comm ssi on on Post-Secondary Educati on

Sol dot na, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented information on the State School
Boar d.

KENNY GALLAHORN, Menber

Al aska State School Board

Kot zebue, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented information on the State School
Boar d.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

8:03: 42 AM

CHAIR HARRIET DRUMMOND called the joint neeting of the Senate
and House Education Standing Conmttees to order at 8:03 a.m
Present at the call to order were Senators Begich, G essel,
Coghill, Stevens, and Chair Hughes, and Representatives Kopp,
Fansl er, Johnston, Spohnhol z, Tal erico, and Chair Drumond.

PRESENTATI ON: Al aska State School Board

8:05: 03 AM

CHAI R DRUMMOND announced a presentation by the Alaska State
School Board. She noted that all seven voting nenbers were
present, as well as the mlitary advisor and both student
menbers. She said it wll be a very informal neeting and M.
Fields will act as noderator.

8:06: 21 AM

JAMES FI ELDS, Chair, Alaska State Board of Education, presented
information on the State School Board. He introduced hinself.

CHAIR DRUMMOND noted the presence of Conm ssioner Johnson and
t hat Representative Parish joined the neeting.

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES - 3- March 29, 2017



8:07: 09 AM

MR. FI ELDS thanked the commttees for the opportunity to be here
today. He was grateful for the chance to collaborate with both
Education Committees. He related that the State Board of
Education has been working toward a plan with the goal of
transform ng the way student |earning happens in the state. The
next step in the plan is the Al aska Education Challenge wth
five strategic objectives. He said Conmm ssioner Johnson is
formng comittees to dive into providing "an excellent
education for every student every day," which is the Board's
m ssi on statenent.

MR. FIELDS related that with commttee nenbers from a wde
vari ety of st akehol der gr oups, i ncl udi ng | egi sl ators,
adm ni strators, |ocal school board nenbers, parents, teachers,
busi ness | eaders, the Board is hopeful that transformative ideas
and action steps will conme forward and have w despread support
to then nove forward and be inplenented throughout Al aska. He
noted there are pockets of transformative work in the state, and
the goal is to take those ideas and allow them to be used
t hr oughout the state.

MR. FIELDS pointed out that the Education Committees are
critical in the process and the Board wants to hear their
concerns, coments, and ideas related to the Alaska Education
Chal | enge. The Board |ooks forward to having conmttee nenbers
join the various comm ttees Comm ssioner Johnson is form ng.

He i ntroduced nenbers of the Board.

8:08: 59 AM

SUE HULL, First Vice Chair, Al aska State School Board, presented
information on the State School Board. She said she has been
active in education for years and served on the Board in the
80s. She said she is excited to be a part of the Al aska
Education Challenge. There is a hunger for transformation in
education anong education stakeholders and the public. She said
the Board is strong and energetic and is focused on Kkids.

8:09:57 AM

JOHN HARMON, Second Vice Chair, Al aska State School Board,
presented information on the State School Board. He said he is
fromthe Mat-Su Valley and his famly has been in Alaska a |ong
tinme. He practiced law for nmany years and then returned to
Al aska and has worked as a high school principal. Next year he
wi || teach high school English.

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES -4- March 29, 2017



8:10: 38 AM

BARBARA THOMPSON, Menber, Alaska State School Board, presented
information on the State School Board. She said she has been in
education about 40 years in various roles; adult education,
Departnent of Education, and at the national |evel wth the
Education Commi ssion of the States. She is pleased to serve on
the Board and excited about how the Al aska Education Challenge
wll inpact student achievenent and teacher preparation and
ef fectiveness.

8:11:16 AM

WLFRI ED ZIBELL, Youth Advisor, Alaska State School Board,
presented information on the State School Board. He said he is a
hi gh school senior and is an honor to have served on the Board.
He is looking forward to the Al aska Educati on Chal |l enge.

8:11:44 AM

CHARLES M CHAEL, Youth Advisor - Elect, Alaska State School
Board, presented information on the State School Board. He said
he will be the next Youth Advi sor on the Board.

8:12: 01 AM

REBECCA H MSCHOOT, Menber, Al aska State School Board, presented
information on the State School Board. She said she is a teacher
and is she is grateful to serve on the energized Board. She
recogni zed two forner students in the room

8:12:38 AM

LT. COLONI AL  JASON TOOLE, Mlitary Advisor, Joi nt Base
El mendorf, Al aska State School Board, presented information on
the State School Board.

8.12:45 AM

DR. KEITH HAM LTON, Menber, Al aska State School Boar d,
Pr esi dent, Al aska Christian Coll ege, and Menber, Al aska
Comm ssi on on Post-Secondary Education, presented information on
the State School Board. He said he is grateful for the unified
Board which is noving ahead with the Al aska Educati on Chall enge.

8:13:45 AM

KENNY GALLAHORN, Menber, Alaska State School Board, presented
information on the State School Board. He said education is
inportant to him and his famly. He represents the rural
districts. He appreciated the work the Education Commttees
does. He said he is result oriented.

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES - 5- March 29, 2017



8:15: 03 AM

MR. FIELDS shared that he is from the Copper River School
District and has served on the local school board there for
seven years and the State Board for four years. He said he is
t he REAA nenber to the Board.

CHAI R HUGHES said she is delighted that the whole Board is here.
She asked about their work ensuring that graduates are ready to
attend the university and not needing renediation. She referred
to an article about students with high GPAs needing renedial
course work.

8:15: 54 AM

M5. HULL said she chairs a joint comrttee of the State Board
and the University Regents which is charged with nine elenents:
creating a culture of education, reducing devel opnental course
wor k, expanding concurrent enroll nment, i mprovi ng educative
preparation, expanding Alaska educator recruitnment, ensuring
educator retention, sinplifying the transfer of <credit, and
ensuring snooth transitions.

She stat ed t hat educat i on needs greater syst ens of
accountability, and the use of today's technology as a nethod to
ensure that quality is tracked all along. Both the Board of
Regents and the State Board are aware of the renediation
problem Several of the Al aska Education Challenge conmttees
are focused on student achievenent and accountability and wll
cone out with reconmendati ons.

8:.18: 04 AM
CHAI R DRUMMOND not ed the presence of Representative Reinbol d.

MR. FI ELDS assuned that student achi evenent would be included in
all five of the Al aska Education Challenge priorities.

8:18:41 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSTON conmented that students who did not do
remedi al courses had a greater success rate than students who
were put into renedial courses. She asked how they planned to
rai se the bar for those students.

M5. HULL responded that the goal is that students not have to
take renedi al classes at the university |evel

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES - 6- March 29, 2017



REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSTON clarified that naybe bright students
were being put into renmedial classes and didn't belong there
Expectations for success were not there.

V. HULL said she believes that Representative Johnston
suggested accelerating renedial classes. She said the enphasis
should instead be on not having to take remnedial classes. The
way to do that is to ensure that grades reflect actua
achi evenent .

8:20:45 AM

M5. HI MSCHOOT added that defining "remedial" should cone first.
She al so commented on the need to have students reading by third
grade or they would need renediation all the way through school.

8:21:35 AM

CHAI R DRUVWWOND fol | owed up on the comrent about reading by third
grade and how critical that is, as is pre-K education. She asked
where pre-K is on the Board's priorities. She enphasized that it
is the Departnment of Education and "Early Devel opnent."

M5. HI MSCHOOT noted there is a lot of interest and inportance
pl aced on pre-K education and it will be addressed in the Al aska
Education Challenge in every conmttee. She stressed that
working with parents is inportant, as is high quality pre-K
educati on.

8:23:25 AM
SENATOR BEG CH recommended | ooking at the early education bil
to be heard on the Senate Fl oor today.

8:24:24 AM
MR. FIELDS pointed to the inportance of conmunity involvenent in
pre-K educati on.

SENATOR BEG CH noted there is a specific conponent for cultura
and community collaboration in the bill.

8:24.:51 AM

REPRESENTATI VE PARI SH said he attended the Juneau School Board
nmeeti ng yesterday and heard their budget process. He asked what
support the legislature can provide to the State School Board.

8:25:47 AM
MR. FIELDS replied that a sustained fiscal plan for |ocal school
districts and certainty in the state budget are critical. He

shared his viewoint as a business owner. Governor Wl ker

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES -7- March 29, 2017



proposed $250,000 for the Alaska Education Challenge to nove it
forward. He maintained that the state has the right |eadership
in place and the right alignnment between the Governor and the
| egislature to invest in education. Also, there is a strong
State Board and buy-in wth stakeholders around the state to
nove the plan forward.

8:27:23 AM

MR. HARMON said a quote from John Kennedy conmes to mnd when he
is asked that question, "Children are our nost val uable resource
and our best hope for the future." He opined that the state's
priority should be to invest in children.

8:.28: 25 AM

CHAI R DRUVWWOND sai d, from her experience being on a |ocal school
board, the timng of the budget is of the utnost inportance. She
pointed out that the state's budget begins on July 1, and the
| onger the legislature waits to finalize a budget, the harder it
is for conmunities to wite theirs.

8:29: 08 AM

SENATOR STEVENS spoke of concerns about dual credit - high
school /college credits. He wanted to ensure that those credits
are at college credit |evel.

8:29:51 AM
M5. HULL said in Fairbanks the sane teacher teaches a course at
the wuniversity and at the high school. She suggested having
teachers with good credentials and evidence of performnce for
students. She sees a need to pursue dual credits in order to
save noney.

8: 30: 54 AM
DR HAMLTON said that Alaska is behind in the dual credit
program The Al aska Educati on Chal |l enge can change that.

He noted the transfer of university credits is still a problem
He provided an exanple of credits earned from Association for
Career and Technical Education (ACTE) colleges that do not
transfer to the UA system He suggested continuing to |ook at
how to take the barriers down between the dual credit and credit
transfer issues.

8:32:52 AM

MR ZIBELL agreed with the previous comments. He described what
is done in his school district; students can take online courses

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES - 8- March 29, 2017



from the university. He suggested to forge partnershi ps between
the university and districts.

8:34:10 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KOPP followed up on the need for renediation and
integrating K-12 and post-secondary education. He agreed with a
stronger integration of standards and a wunified approach. He
asked if the discussion is leading the Board to encourage K-12
to be less focused on a graduation rate and nore focused on
rigorous courses and aligned standards that nmatch expectancy of
the university system

8:35: 28 AM

MR MCHAEL said part of the Board's goal is to have |ocal
control over curriculum An exanple is that in the Mt-Su they
are updating the history curriculum to better reflect what a
coll ege history course will be I|ike.

8:36: 24 AM

M5. HULL did not want to get away from caring about graduation
rates. She thought students being prepared was also inportant.
She used the state of Virginia as an exanple of how students
choose a track to follow for post-secondary preparation -
di fferentiated dipl onas.

8:37:39 AM

MR. FIELDS said the Board has had training in standardized
learning and aligning all standards so every student can be
successful at all levels. Defining success is inportant.

8:38:43 AM

MR. HARMON said Representative Kopp asked a great question.
Sonmething exciting in education now is the inplenmentation of
Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA), which will give nore contro
back to the states in all areas. It wll provide an opportunity
to be innovative and to solve sonme of Al aska's challenges.

8:39: 37 AM

CHAIR DRUVMOND voiced concerned about what is going on in
Washington, D.C., in terns of ESSA. She has heard that it has
been paused and asked what that neans regarding the Septenber
deadl i ne.

8:40: 04 AM

M5. H MSCHOOT said she is serving in a fellowship on the
Nat i onal Science Foundation for a year. Their focus is on ESSA
and there is no pause, only a repeal of Cbama regulations.

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES -9- March 29, 2017



States are allowed to respond to the Iaw and Al aska is on track
There has been a |ot of stakeholder engagenent. She maintained
that ESSA and the Al aska Education Challenge fit well together.

8:41:59 AM

CHAI R HUGHES asked what the Board is doing to ensure enough, and
the best, teachers. There is a national shortage of teachers,
the cost of teacher turnover is very high, and there is |oss of
student | earning. She stressed the inportance of famly
i nvol venent and great teachers in a child s education. They have
been | ooking at virtual education which would provide access to
great teachers statew de. She asked what the Board is doing in
t hose areas.

8:43:27 AM
M5. THOWPSON said one of the major focus areas of the strategic
plan is ensuring educator excellence; it also wll be a focus of

the Al aska Education Challenge. The nentoring program no | onger
exists as it was. They anticipate working with the university on
teacher preparation and alternative nethods of certification.

8:45:22 AM
CHAIR DRUMMOND said she is fascinated by Representative Kress-
Thompkins' bill on the limted teacher certificate. She asked

whet her the Board is aware of HB 102, which the House Educati on
Comm ttee passed out of commttee.

8.46: 04 AM

MR. FIELDS said he was updated on the bill, but the Board does
not have a position on it. Any tine they can help inprove
teacher proficiency and increase the nunber of teachers they
wWill. This issue is on the Board's priority list. It is critica
that the Alaska Education Challenge conmttees conme up wth
i deas and action steps, so the Board can inplenment them

8:.47:21 AM

M5. HI MSHOOT drew attention to the issue as a nationw de problem
of recruiting and retention of teachers. She pointed out that
| ooking at alternate pathways to becom ng teachers needs to be a
conversation with all stakeholders involved. She wants to see a
conprehensive conversation to ensure that the quality of
teachers i s maintained.

8:48: 53 AM

CHAI R DRUVMMOND suggested ensuring excellent educators be a part
of the five priorities.

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES - 10- March 29, 2017



8:49: 15 AM

REPRESENTATI VE PARI SH said he went to a hearing on the proposed
defined benefits program for state workers. He provided an
exanple of a teacher who was leaving Alaska for a defined
benefits pension in another state. He also knows of a police
officer who said the sane thing. He opined that Tier 4 state
workers are incentivized to nove from the state after five
years. He asked if a defined benefits option mght retain
t eachers.

8:50:49 AM

DR. HAM LTON said absolutely. He pointed out that "hone-grown
educators”™ are retained in Alaska. The investnment in those
teachers is vital because they will not |eave Al aska.

8:51:41 AM
CHAIR DRUMMOND pointed out that the state is not producing
enough teachers and the Anchorage District will be laying off 99

teachers. She suggested maki ng a connection there.

8:52: 20 AM

REPRESENTATI VE FANSLER said there has been a focus on
cooperative opportunities between districts and the use of
broadband for education. He asked for options to bridge the gap
for broadband disparity and for suggestions about the advantages
of distance educati on.

8:53:29 AM

M5. HULL agreed that there are significant broadband issues. The
key is finding how to enable districts to use what bandw dth
they have. All districts should be |ooking for opportunities to
expand access to bandw dth. She agreed there are inequities.

8:55: 00 AM

MR. FIELDS commented that Valdez and dennallen have used
federal grant noney for fiber optic expansion. He suggested
col | aborati on between schools and busi nesses.

8:56: 01 AM

M5. HI MBHOOT added that with digital learning the relationship
with the teacher is the nunber one factor for success. Teachers
often provide stability for students not avail able at hone.

8:56:46 AM
CHAI R DRUMVOND agr eed.

8:56: 59 AM

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES -11- March 29, 2017



REPRESENTATI VE FANSLER stressed the inportance of cultural
integration into the curriculum including in teaching methods.
He asked for recommendations in that area.

8:57: 53 AM

M5. HI MSHOOT agreed it was inportant. She said the Southeast
Regi onal Resource Center is doing outreach throughout the state
to support cultural conpetencies. She noted the inportance of
including all cultures. The said that the Educator Excellence
Comm ttee woul d be | ooking at that.

8:58: 53 AM
MR. ZIBELL agreed. He shared that they have culture canp for al
new teachers in his district.

8:59: 58 AM

M5. THOWPSON said curriculum devel opnent and execution takes
place at the local level and the Board encourages that. The
menbers of the Al aska Education Challenge support that it is an
inportant way to get students to learn and have |earning be
rel evant.

9: 00: 55 AM

REPRESENTATI VE  JOHNSTON  spoke of gr eat i nnovati on and
entrepreneurial work taking place in many districts. They are
beginning, on their own, to do sone cross fertilization. She
asked how the Board plans to anplify this direction.

9:01: 43 AM

M5. HULL said the Board has to encourage collaboration and
i nnovations. She thought it wuld be one of the Board's
recommendations. She nentioned digital possibilities to make
peopl e aware of what is available. She thought the Board could
provide a wunified system of support while ensuring quality
progr ans.

9: 04: 25 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSTON said she sees innovation already
happeni ng around districts. She understood that the conm ssion
and the department could act as a clearinghouse, but she also
wants to allow for growth and innovation to conti nue.

M5. HULL agreed and gave an exanple a way to do that - using a
nodel of choices related to professional devel opnent.

9: 06: 00 AM

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES -12- March 29, 2017



MR. FIELDS said the goal is to have districts choose to do that.
He said | eadership matters and he opined that good |eadership is
in place and he thought stakeholders were aligned. He was
hopeful that it could be done.

9:07: 22 AM
SENATOR STEVENS brought up the need for, and inportance of,
civics education to create student citizens.

9:08:14 AM
MR MCHAEL said he is on the curriculum council in his
district. They have been working on the social st udi es

curriculum with the goal to nmke good citizens, starting wth
Cvics and ending with U S. Governnent. He opined that it is not
the place of the state to tell districts to create citizens.
There is a need to focus on |ocal control.

9:09: 47 AM

MR. HARMON shared that the Board adopted a new vision that all
students can succeed in their education and work, shape
worthwhile and satisfying lives for thenselves, exenplify the
best values of society, and be effective in inproving the
character and quality of the world around them He said it is a
priority as it relates to civics and society.

9:10: 50 AM
SENATOR STEVENS stressed that it is not enough to say, "let the
| ocal community take care of it." He recalled when he was a

student he studied current events, history, and wanted to vote.
He thought it was the Board's job to ensure that every child in
Al aska has an understanding of his or her responsibility as a
citizen.

9:11:36 AM
M5. HULL offered that a practical tool is looking at what is
expected of graduates. She said that she and Ms. Thonpson will

be chairing the Student Achievenent Conmittee and will propose
to define what is expected from graduates. A graduate profile
wi | | i nclude content know edge, but al so communi cati on,
col |l aboration, and civics. Students today don't have clear
expectations of those other skill requirenents.

9:13: 33 AM

SENATOR BEG CH asked M. M chael what he hopes to acconplish on
t he Board.

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES - 13- March 29, 2017



He echoed Senator Stevens' comments about civics. He said
denocracy fails if we don't educate students. Currently, schoo

success is neasured by content area success, but that is a
fail ed approach to education. W don't teach critical thinking.
We have gone the wong direction.

He agreed that digital learning requires a quality teacher in
the classroom Teacher retention requires treating teachers well
and paying them well. He opined that Al aska-raised teachers do
not remain in the state. He stressed the need to address teacher
pay and teacher retirenent benefits.

He noted, in the process of this and next |egislative sessions,
several issues may pass into law before the Al aska Education
Chal | enge has been net. He asked what the Board needs from the
| egislature in terns of policy education.

9:17: 47 AM
MR. FIELDS responded that he has |ooked at SB 96 and there are
many great elements in the bill that will be touched on by the

Al aska Educati on Chal | enge.

SENATOR BEG@ CH clarified that he is not asking about any
specific bills, but about how the legislature mght address
i ssues of policy that are inportant to the Board.

MR. FIELDS requested tinme to get through the Al aska Education
Chal | enge process and then support for it. He reiterated that
| eadership and timng matter and they are in place. He pointed

out that the legislature will participate on the conmttees and
will have a say. In Decenber 2017 the Board wll have action
st eps.

9:19: 20 AM

MR. HARMON recomrended the legislature consider "an excellent
education for every student every day" as the primary | ens.

9:20: 23 AM
MR.  GALLAHORN thanked Senator Begich for his coment about
treating teachers well. He stressed the inportance of having

good teachers and paying themwell by using part of the budget.

9:21:56 AM

CHAI R DRUVMOND asked outgoing student, M. Zibell, and incomng
student, M. Mchael, what their experience has been on the
Board and how it has changed how they views their schools.

9:22:43 AM

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES -14- March 29, 2017



MR. ZIBELL said he has had the opportunity to shape policy,
provide input, and help direct plans, in a very real way. It has
been a validating experience to show that students are val ued
and are the first stakeholders in education. He believes that
t he education systemin Al aska will persevere.

MR MCHAEL said it is nice to see people working hard to nake
Al aska education the best it can be. He replied to Senator
Begi ch's question saying he will serve on the Mbdernization and
Finance Commttee for the Al aska Educati on Chall enge.

In response to the civics question, he said his school now
offers three Advanced Placenent Wrld History courses online
that are at the college |evel

He concluded that he hopes to help nmake education the best it
can be for students in Al aska.

9:26:11 AM

M5. THOMPSON responded to the question regarding what the
| egi slature can do to help the Board. She noted what cones out
of the Al aska Education Challenge, no matter when it is done
requi res a sustainable fiscal plan.

She referred to the question on civics education, and pointed
out that the C vics Education Task Force has done an amazing
anount of work. Their recommendations are directly applicable to
the Board and DEED in many ways. She maintained that their goals
can be achieved by many nethods, such as updating the standards.
She prom sed that civic education goals will not get | ost.

9:28: 15 AM
SENATOR d ESSEL nmade announcenents, as did Chair Drunnpnd.

9:30:18 AM
There being no further business to cone before the conmttee
Chair Drunmond adj ourned the Joint Education Standing Commttees
at 9:30 a.m

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES -15- March 29, 2017



